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1
Monwarul Hasan 

Jim

Vice president of 

Sadullapur Jubo 

League

Naldanga, 

Sadullahpur, 

Gaibandha

1 1 1 9/1/2017 20/01/2017

2
Sadequl Islam 

Sadek

Former president of 

Damodarpur union 

Chhatra League

Naldanga, 

Sadullahpur, 

Gaibandha

1 1 1 9/1/2017 20/01/2017

3
Maidul Islam 

Prince

Publication 

Secretary of 

Naldanga union 

Awami League

Naldanga Railgate 

area, Gaibandha
1 1

Maidul‘s brother Tarikul Islam Nayon, Chairman of Naldanga Union Parishad stated that, his 

brother was allegedly picked up by a group of people in plainclothes identifying as members of law 

enforcement agency from Naldanga rail gate area with motorcycle at around 11.00 am on January 

10, 2017. On January 11, 2017 they arranged a press conference. The same day, family members 

filed a General Diary (G.D) with the Sadullapur Police Station. However, on January 21, 2017 he 

was freed alive. Prince said some unidentified men picked him with a motorcycle from the road and 

half an hour later they picked up Shafiul from Naldanga on January 10 and got them into in a 

microbus blindfolded. Around 1:00am on January 21, 2017, some people dropped them in a lonely 

place. Those people told Prince and Shafiul that their motorcycle is a little ahead and ordered them 

to take it and go home. After reaching Taxer Bazar, Prince and Shafiul felt sick. Prince phoned his 

elder brother and asked him to send a microbus said the AL leader. During captivity they were 

blindfolded. 


1 10/1/2017 21/01/2017

Prothom Alo 

12/01/2017 , 

http://www.proth

omalo.com/bangl

adesh/article/105

7871 and 

Prothom Alo 

22/01/2017, and 

The Daily Star, 

22/01/2017, 

https://www.thed

ailystar.net/front

page/two-others-

4
Shafiul Islam 

Shapla

Assistant Secretary 

of Naldanga 

Chhatra Dal 

(student wing of 

BNP)

Naldanga 

Kacharibazar 

area, Gaibandha

1 1

Shafiul Islam‘s father Aminul Islam told that at around 11:00 pm on January 10, 2017 his son was 

at Kacharibazzar area of Naldanga. At that time, a group of people identifying themselves as 

members of law enforcement agency picked up him. On January 11, 2017 they arranged a press 

conference. The same day, family members filed a General Diary (G.D) with the Sadullapur Police 

Station. However, on January 21, 2017 he was freed alive.

1 10/1/2017 21/01/2017

Prothom Alo 

12/01/2017 , 

http://www.proth

omalo.com/bangl

adesh/article/105

7871 and 

Prothom Alo 

22/01/2017, and 

The Daily Star, 

22/01/2017, 

https://www.thed

ailystar.net/front

page/two-others-

show-11-days-

after-abduction-

1349044

Follow up
Date of 

Incident

Date of 

returning/ 

found 

dead

Source and 

Date 

On 9 January 2017 at around 10.30 pm, Monowarul went outside with motorcycle. He started to go 

Sadequl Islam‘s house at Naldanga union. Later, they have been disappeared and traceless. 

Family members suspected that they were taken by plainclothes law enforcement agency. 

However, on 20 January 2017 both of them were freed alive by a group of people. Traumatised 

Sadequl Islam said that after dropping them off a microbus at a lonely place in Syedpur upazila of 

Nilphamari at midnight, some people told them to take their motorcycle and go straight, without 

looking back. They later returned home. The victim family said that they did not know about their 

whereabouts as they remained blindfolded all the time but they served food three times. Earlier on 

18 January 2017, family members of the missing leaders at a press conference in the town said 

that the four were picked up by plainclothes people from different areas.

The Daily Satr, 

20/01/2018, 

https://www.thed

ailystar.net/count

ry/jim-sadeq-tell-

horrifying-event-

1348135, The 

Daily Star, 

19/01/2018, 

https://www.thed

ailystar.net/count

ry/trace-my-

husbands-

whereabouts-
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5
Mohammad 

Hassan 

Salesman in a 

clothes shop 

‗Sumon‘s Fashion‘ 

at Shah Ali Market

Shah Ali Market, 

Mirpur, Dhaka
1 1

A relative of Mohammad Hassan said that Hassan worked as a salesman in a clothes shop at 

Shah Ali Market. On January 7, 2017 he was returning to the shop from his house after the 

evening prayer. Later, he was traceless and did not return home at night. The, family members 

searched for him at different places including hospital, police station etc. Later they met with the 

committee of the market and asked for the CCTV footage. At the footage, they found that Hassan 

was picked up by five plainclothes men. A shopkeeper identified one of the five men, named Ansar 

Ali. He informed that Ansar Ali is a Sub Inspector of  the DB  police of Dhaka Metropolitan City. On 

January 8, 2017 they filed a General Diary (GD) of missing with Kafrul Police Station. The family 

alleged that members of Kafrul Police Station are not cooperating to find Hassan. Mohammad 

Hasan told that he was picked up on suspicion of being a Jamaat-Shibir activists. He was detained 

at the DB office at Mintu Road in Dhaka for 82 days. He was then charged in a criminal case and 

produced him before the court. After two years detained in jail, he was released on bail. He still has 

to appear in court. He did not agree to talk further about it.

1 7/1/2017

Prothom Alo 

20/02/2017 and 

Prothom Alo 

21/02/2017 

www.prothom-

alo.com/banglad

esh/article/10850

45/হ঵ফাজতে-

হরতে-‗নিতো োঁজ‘ 

and 

http://www.proth

omalo.com/bangl

adesh/article/108

5765/অপ঵রতের-

অ

6
Shafiqul Islam 

Modhu

A resident of 

Alamnagar in 

Rangpur District 

and an employee of 

Rangpur 

Karuponno 

Garment Company

Mithapukur, 

Rangpur
1 1

Shafiqul Islam Modhu, a resident of Alamnagar in Rangpur District and an employee of Rangpur 

Karuponno Garment Company, along with his wife and son, went to visit his father-in-law 

Mohammad Fazlul Huq‘s house in Mithapukur, Rangpur. On 13 January 2017 at around 4:00 am, 

a group of men identifying themselves as members of the administration and also a man in police 

uniform picked up Shafiqul Islam Modhu while he was staying at his father-in-law‘s house. At that 

time Modhu‘s wife and his relatives asked the men for the reason of his arrest. Without replying to 

their question, the men seized two cell phones and a motorbike and left the place with Modhu. 

After that incident, when the family members of Modhu went to Mithapukur Police Station to see 

him, the police denied about his arrest. Later they searched for him at Rangpur Central Jail, 

Kotowali Police Station and the Office of the Superintendent of Police. After being failure to get 

any trace of Modhu, on 1 February 2017 the victim-family filed a General Diary with Mithapukur 

Police Station. On 7 February 2017 Modhu‘s wife Ferdowsy Begum organised a press conference 

at Rangpur Press Club and appealed to the administration with regard to return her husband.

1

On 1 February 2017 

the victim-family 

filed a General 

Diary with 

Mithapukur Police 

Station

13/01/2017

The daily 

Manabzamin, 

08/02/2017, 

http://www.mza

min.com/details-

archive2016.php

?mzamin=52528

7
Mohammad 

Hanif Mridha 
A businessman

Kanchpur Bridge 

in Narayanganj
1 1

The family of Mohammad Hanif Mridha alleged that a few men claiming to be members of the DB 

police on 27 February 2017 picked up Hanif Mridha, a businessman belongs to Shah Ali area 

under Rayerbazar (permanent resident of Amragachhia village under Amtoli Upazila in Borguna 

District) and his friend Sohel Hossain, from Kanchpur area of Narayanganj. On 17 March 2017 an 

unknown man was killed during a suicidal attack at the Forces Barrack of RAB Headquarters in 

Ashkona, Dhaka. The identity of the deceased still could not be found. RAB filed a case in this 

regard. The commander of RAB-1 Lt. Col. Sarwar Bin Kashem informed that Mohammad Hanif 

Mridha was arrested on suspicious on the day when a suicidal attack occurred at the Forces 

Barrack of RAB Headquarters. Hanif was admitted to Kuritola General Hospital when he came ill 

where he died after sometimes.  Hanif‘s wife Kulsum Begum said that her husband Hanif and his 

friend Sohel went to Barisal on 24 February 2017 to attend a meeting of Chormonai pir. On 27 

February they returned from there by launch and got down near the Kanchpur Bridge in 

Narayanganj. Driver Jewel went there with a private car to bring them home.  While Hanif and 

Sohel were about to get in car, a few men claiming to be members of DB police picked them up 

and driver Jewel was beaten up and took his car away after putting him down at Purbanchal of 

Dhaka. On 4 March 2017 Hanif‘s elder brother Mohammad Halim filed a General Diary with 

Siddhirganj Police Station, mentioning the disappearances of Hanif and Sohel. Halim informed that 

on 15 March 2017 at around 9:30 am, two vehicles came to their house. A few men came out of 

the car with Hanif and entered the house. The men told Hanif‘s wife that her husband had assisted 

an illegal act. They forced them to bring Hanif‘s two cheque books belong to BRAC Bank and 

Dutch-Bangla Bank and took signature on a cheque of six hundred and seventy thousand taka. 

1

On 4 March 2017 

Hanif‘s elder brother 

Mohammad Halim 

filed a General 

Diary with 

Siddhirganj Police 

Station

27/02/2017 17/03/2017

The daily New 

Age,  

20/03/2017, 

http://www.newa

gebd.net/article/

11604/custodial-

death-victim-

picked-up-

weeks-ago-

family , The 

Daily Star, 

20/03/2017, 

https://www.thed

ailystar.net/front

page/hanif-

picked-feb-27-

1378531 and 

The daily 

Prothom Alo, 

20/03/2017, 

8
Moulana Dewan 

Shah Alam

Former Secretary 

of Joypurhat Sadar 

upazila unit of 

Jamaat-e-Islami

1 1 1

9
Nahidul Islam 

Nahid

President of Amdoi 

union unit of 

Joypurhat of 

student wing of 

Jamaat-e-Islami 

1 1 1

10 Robiul Islam

Activist of student 

wing of Jamaat-e-

Islami

1 1 1

11 Masudul Alam

Activist of student 

wing of Jamaat-e-

Islami

1 1 1

In front of 

Joypurhat Jail gate

Nahidul's sister Nahida alleged that four of them were released on bail at around 9.00 pm on 

March 14, 2017 from Joypurhat Jail. While they came out from the Jail, a team of Detective Branch 

of Police picked up them from the jail gate in a black microbus. Later, family members went to 

police but they denied about their whereabouts. They were remaining traceless for three days. On 

March 17, 2017 four of them were shown as arrested in a police drive with eight petrol bombs, two 

crude bombs and 300 gm gun powder from Koroikadipur Krishi College of Joypurhat Sadar Upazila.

14/03/2017 17/03/2017

Nayadiganta 

18/03/2017 

http://www.dailyn

ayadiganta.com/

detail/news/2044

51 and 

Bangladesh 

Protidin 

17/03/2017 

http://www.bd-

pratidin.com/cou

ntry-

village/2017/03/1

7/215671



12
Nurul Alam Nuru 

aged 40

Assistant General 

Secretary of JCD 

(youth wing of BNP)

Raozan Upazila, 

Chittagong
1 1

A central leader of Jatiyatabadi Chhatra Dal (student wing of BNP) was found murdered on the 

banks of the Karnaphuli river in Raozan upazila hours after he was picked up allegedly by law 

enforcers from his home in the port city on 29 March 2017 night. Nurul Alam Nuru, 40, was shot 

twice in the head. His hands were tied with rope and there were several injury marks on his body, 

said Nur Nabi, a Sub-Inspector of Raozan Police Station. Family members and local BNP leaders 

said Nuru, assistant general secretary of JCD, was picked up by 10 people - five each in police 

uniform and plainclothes - from his rented home in Chandanpura area around 11:30pm on 29 

March 2017. On 30 March 2017 morning, some locals noticed a body on the river banks in Thelar 

Char area and informed police, who recovered and sent it to Chittagong Medical College for 

autopsy. Nuru hailed from Raozan upazila. After being informed, his family members went to the 

spot and identified his body. Gazi Sirajullah, president of Chittagong city Chhatra Dal (student wing 

of BNP), said Nuru, a follower of BNP Vice-Chairman Gias Uddin Kader Chowdhury, was 

murdered ―in a planned way‖. BNP leader Gias Uddin claimed the family members of the victim 

identified SI Jabed (Sheikh Jabed Mia) of Raozan Police Station as one of those who had picked 

up Nuru. He said Nuru was accused in several political cases, but was not a criminal. ―He was 

murdered because of his political identity.‖ SI Sheikh Jabed Mia, however, refuted the allegation. 

―It's not true. I was with my team which was carrying out an anti-militancy drive in Raozan when the 

Chhatra Dal leader was picked up.‖ Contacted, Kefayet Ullah, officer-in-charge of Raozan Police 

Station, claimed no policeman was involved in the incident. He said Nuru was facing at least four 

cases, including two for murder. ―We are investigating whether he had enmity with anyone.‖ Senior 

Assistant Superintendent of Police (Rangunia circle) Zahangir Alam said they would look into the 

matter.

1 29/03/2017 30/03/2017

The Daily Star 

31/03/2017, 

http://www.theda

ilystar.net/city/3-

family-picked-

detectives-

1384129

13 Hiru Mia (45) Easy-bike driver

The intersection of 

Abu Naser 

Hospital road, 

Khulna

1 1

On 4 March 2017 at around 10:00 am, an Easy-bike driver Hiru Mia (45), of Bastohara area under 

Khalishpur of Khulna Metropolitan City, was allegedly picked up on a microbus by some men 

claiming to be members of the Detective Branch (DB) of Police from in front of Sheikh Abu Naser 

Specialized Hospital at Boira, Khulna. Hiru Mia, son of Abdul Mazid Mrida and a resident of plot 

no. 92, Road no. 2 at Bastohara area. Hiru‘s cell phone remained switched off since he was taken. 

His family is living in fear and grave concern. Hiru Mia‘s wife Momtaz Begum filed a General Diary 

(GD) on 4 March (GD numbered 172) with Khalishpur Police Station. However, police could not 

find any trace out of him or any information in relation to this matter.  Momtaz Begum alleged that 

on 4 March at around 9:00 am, her husband went outside home on bicycle for buying medicine. At 

around 10:00 am, when he reached the intersection of Abu Naser Hospital road, three men on two 

motorbikes stopped him. At that time an altercation took place between Hiru Mia and the men who 

identified them as members of law enforcement agencies. Later four plain clothes men arrived with 

a white microbus and picked him up. On 22 March 2017 he was shown as arrested in a bomb 

blast case. Hiru Mia's wife Momtaz Begum informed that Hiru Mia was detained by the members of 

RAB-6. Now, Hiru Mia is in the jail.

1

Hiru Mia‘s wife 

Momtaz Begum 

filed a General 

Diary (GD) on 4 

March (GD 

numbered 172) with 

Khalishpur Police 

Station. 

4/3/2017 22/03/2017

Manabzamin 

06/03/2017, 

http://www.mza

min.com/details-

archive2016.php

?mzamin=56186 

 and Momtaz 

Begum, wife of 

Hiru Mia, cell no- 

 01982669693

14 Rafiqul Islam Alleged Robber

Badhbazaar area, 

Mirpur upazila, 

Kushtia

1 1

Rafiqul Islam aged 42 was allegedly killed in a gunfight with police in the Kushtia-Meherpur 

highway of Moshan area on 28 March 2017. Family members of Rafiqul Islam demanded that four 

days ago on 24 March 2017 a group of people who identified themselves as members of Detective 

branch of police picked up Rafiqul from Badhbazar area of Mirpur Upazila by a microbus. Later, he 

was traceless and found dead in the gunfight on 28 March 2017.

1 24/03/2017 28/03/2017

Prothom Alo 

30/03/2017 

http://www.proth

omalo.com/bangl

adesh/article/112

7041/ 

15
SM Shafikur 

Rahman, 35

Involved with 

transportation 

business

1 1 1

16
Md Hasan alias 

Tareq, 21
Not reported 1 1 1

17
Moazzem 

Hossain Sathi, 18 
Not reported 1 1 1

18 Imrul Hossain Not reported

Jalalpur village, 

Kotchandpur, 

Jhenaidah

1 1 1

19 Ibrahim Gazi Not reported

Kashimnagar 

village, Sadar 

upazila, Jhenaidah

1 1 1

20 Rezaul Islam Not reported

Kashimnagar 

village, Sadar 

upazila, Jhenaidah

1 1 1

Family members of five men in Jhenaidah alleged that police had picked them up from different 

areas of the town. The people who had been picked up are Imrul Hossain, Ibrahim Gazi, Rezaul 

Islam, Alam Khan and Humayun Kabir. Imrul, hailing from Kotchandpur, was picked up on 22 

March. His wife Champa Khatun said some people claiming to be policemen came to their house 

at midnight and took Imrul with them. Police said Imrul was to show them the location of a 

convict‘s house, said Champa. Jhenaidah additional police superintend Azbahar Ali Sheikh said 

police did not pick up anybody.On 1 April 2017 Humayun Kabir was freed alive.

22/03/2017 1/4/2017

Prothom Alo 

31/03/2017 and 

The Daily Satr, 

05/04/2017, 

http://103.16.74.

132/country/six-

jhenidah-people-

picked-1386622    

   Rezaul 

Hossain's son 

Ripon Hossain, 

cell no: 

01739002236 

and Alam's 

brother Salam, 

cell no: 

01963148946 

Alfalah Goli area, 

Chittagong

Three members of a family were picked up from their residence in Chittagong last week by people 

impersonating themselves as law enforcers, alleged the family members. The three — SM 

Shafikur Rahman, 35, involved with transportation business, and his brothers-in-law Md Hasan 

alias Tareq, 21, and Moazzem Hossain Sathi, 18 — were taken away on 24 March from Alfalah 

Goli area and have remained traceless, according to the family. Shafikur‘s wife Sultana Razia 

Tumpa, at a press conference in Chittagong Press Club on March 30, 2017, said that six people 

impersonating themselves as members of the detective branch of police had entered into their 

residence around 2:00pm on 24 March and asked Shafikur to write his signature on a piece of 

paper, but he denied. Sultana said that then the six men took her husband and younger brother 

Moazzem on a white-colour microbus. Her younger brother Hasan followed the microbus on his 

motorbike, but he too did not return home. The men also took away eight cell phones from their 

residence. She also claimed that a day after being taken away, Shafikur had talked to his family 

from his cell phone and told that a team of law enforcers picked them up and later tortured them. 

‗We filed a general diary with the Khulshi Police Station on 25 March in this connection, but the 

police could not rescue my husband and brothers. We also contacted Chittagong city DB office, 

but the concerned officials told us that they had not conducted any drive in that area on 24 March,‘ 

said the housewife.

On 25 March 2017 

a general diary is 

filed with Khulshi 

Police Station in 

this regard.

24/03/2017

New Age 

31/03/2017 

http://www.newa

gebd.net/article/

12398/3-men-

picked-up-by-

law-enforcers-

alleges-

family#sthash.H

2Wsn5Dq.dpuf



21 Alam Khan
Private service 

holder

Bolbariya village, 

Kotchandpur, 

Jhenaidah

1 1 1

22 Humayun Kabir

Professor of 

Kotchandpur Pouro 

College

Kotchandpur 

Pouro College, 

Kashipur village, 

Jhenaidah

1 1 1

23
Ahsan Habib 

Khan aged 36

He returned to 

Bangladesh from 

Malaysia and now 

worked at their 

agricultural land

1 1 1

24
Ruhul Amin 

Khan aged 40

Owner of shop of 

food for fish
1 1 1

25 Al Amin Not reported 1 1

On March 26, 2017 a group of 15-20 plainclothes men introducing themselves as police picked up 

Al Amin from Dhramapur village, Vabicha union, Niyamotpur upazila of Naogaon. Later, on March 

31, 2017 he was shown as arrested in a sexual harassment case.

1 26/03/2017 31/3/2017

26 Milon Rahman Not reported 1 1

On March 28, 2017 a group of 15-20 plainclothes men introducing themselves as police picked up 

Milon Rahman from Dhramapur village, Vabicha union, Niyamotpur upazila of Naogaon. Later, on 

March 31, 2017 he was shown as arrested in a sexual harassment case.

1 28/03/2017 31/3/2017

27 Nur Amin Not reported 1 1

On March 28, 2017 a group of 15-20 plainclothes men introducing themselves as police picked up 

Nur Amin from Dhramapur village, Vabicha union, Niyamotpur upazila of Naogaon. Later, on March 

31, 2017 he was shown as arrested in a sexual harassment case.

1 28/03/2017 31/3/2017

28

Abdul Kuddus 

Pramanik aged 

54

Farmer

Hamirkutsha 

Village, Bagmara 

upazila, Rajshahi

1 1

Zahid Hossain, son of Abdul Kuddus during an interview with HRD Rajshahi stated that his father 

was kidnapped up by a group of men identifying themselves as members of law enforcement 

agencies from the area of Hamirkutsha, Bagmara, Rajshahi. At this time, Engineer Anamul Haque 

who was a local MP of the ruling party and Bagmara Upazilla Chairman assured them that their 

father would return soon, which is why they had not filed any complaint anywhere. However, till 

date they have failed to trace their father, and Abdul Kuddus remains dissapered till today. Kuddus 

family came to know from their neighbor that kuddus was picked up by RAB

1 27.03.2017

Prothom Alo 

01/04/2017 and 

31/03/2017,  

Rashedul Islam 

Firoz, Bagmara 

HRD

29
Anisur Rahman 

aged 36

A businessman and 

Imam of a Masjid 

and an alleged 

member of JMB

Hatiyandaha 

Bazaar Singra 

upazila under 

Natore 

1 1

A businessman and Imam of a Masjid, Anisur Rahman (36) was allegedly taken away from 

Hatiyandaha Bazaar Singra upazila under Natore district by some men identified themselves as 

members of law enforcing agencies. Anisur Rahman was the Emam of Ahle Hadis Jame Masjid of 

Dighal village and he has a shop of making iron furniture at Hatiyandaha Bazaar. Anisur Rahman‘s 

wife Shamima Khatun told that in the afternoon of 3 April 2017, her husband was in his shop. At 

that time, two customers came to the shop. After a while, five plain-clothed armed men came with 

a microbus and identified themselves as members of law enforcing agencies and took Anisur 

away. The men who came to the shop as customer also got in the micro bus and went away. The 

employees of the shop told that all of the plain-clothed men were wearing jacket and everyone had 

arms. Getting the news, Anisur Rahman‘s family contacted Singra Police Station, District Office of 

Superintendent of Police, District Office of Detective Branch of Police and Criminal Investigation 

Department of Police and also RAB camp of Natore. But all of them denied the arrest of Anisur 

Rahman. On 6 April 2017 Shamima filed a GD with Singra police Station in this regard. On 9 April  

2017 Counter Terrorism Unit of Nilphamari sent Anisur Rahman to jail through the court after 

showing him arrested.

1

On 6 April 2017 

Shamima filed a GD 

with Singra police 

Station in this 

regard. 

3/4/2017 9/4/2017

The daily 

Prothom Alo 

and Jugantor, 

08/04/2017, 

Shohidul Islam. 

Elder brother, 

cell no: 

01948749718

Dharmapur village, 

Niyamotpur 

upazila, Naogaon

Prothom Alo 

01/04/2017 and 

31/03/2017

Family members of five men in Jhenaidah alleged that police had picked them up from different 

areas of the town. The people who had been picked up are Imrul Hossain, Ibrahim Gazi, Rezaul 

Islam, Alam Khan and Humayun Kabir. Imrul, hailing from Kotchandpur, was picked up on 22 

March. His wife Champa Khatun said some people claiming to be policemen came to their house 

at midnight and took Imrul with them. Police said Imrul was to show them the location of a 

convict‘s house, said Champa. Jhenaidah additional police superintend Azbahar Ali Sheikh said 

police did not pick up anybody.On 1 April 2017 Humayun Kabir was freed alive.

22/03/2017 1/4/2017

Prothom Alo 

31/03/2017 and 

The Daily Satr, 

05/04/2017, 

http://103.16.74.

132/country/six-

jhenidah-people-

picked-1386622    

   Rezaul 

Hossain's son 

Ripon Hossain, 

cell no: 

01739002236 

and Alam's 

brother Salam, 

cell no: 

01963148946 

Alaipur Village, 

Koloroya, Satkhira

Ahsan Habib Khan aged 36 and his paternal cousin Ruhul Amin Khan aged 42 were allegedly 

picked by members of administration from Alaipur village of Koloroya of Satkhira on 30 March 

2017. Ahsan‘s mother Rashida Khatun alleged that on 30 March 2017 at around 2.00 am a group 

of four people came to their house at Alaipur village, Koloroya in a microbus. They entered their 

house and introduced themselves as members of administration. Those people detained Ahsan 

and picked up him in the microbus. While she asked the reason of his detention, those men beat 

up her and used slangs.  At the same time, from the same microbus 3-4 men get off and entered 

into Ruhul‘s house. Ruhul‘s mother Jobeda Khan said that four plainclothes men detained her son 

on 30 March 2017. As they tried to stop them, those men beat up the family members. Both 

Rashida and Jobeda said that those men carried arms, handcuffs and sticks with them.  Ruhul‘s 

brother Sajid Khan said that Ruhul worked at Malaysia. Three months ago he returned to 

Bangladesh. Ahsan‘s brother Azad Ali Khan said that his brother has a shop of food for fish at 

Rajganj area of Monirampur, Jessore. Ahsan‘s brother Azad Ali Khan filed an abduction case in 

this regard with Koloroya Police Station. Case number:45, date: 30/03/2017. However, on 2 April 

2017 both of them were shown as arrested in a case of human trafficking (case no: 24, date: 

02/04/2017, Jajira Police Station, Shariatpur by Ajahar Ali) and produced before the Shariatpur 

District and Sessions Court by the Rapid Action Battalion. Approximately two months later, they 

got bail from the High Court Division of the Supreme Court.

Ahsan‘s brother 

Azad Ali Khan filed 

an abduction case 

in this regard with 

Koloroya Police 

Station. Case 

number:45, date: 

30/03/2017. 

30/03/2017 2/4/2017

Shaizid Khan, 

brother of Ruhul 

Amin Khan, cell 

phone number- 

01718450740 

Prothom Alo 

01/04/2017 and 

http://bhorer-

dak.com/details.

php?id=54944



30

Mowlana 

Shahidullah 

Sarkar

A teacher of 

Chautul Hera 

Madrassa of 

Mymensingh and 

Joint General 

Secretary of 

Ittefaqul Ulama

Khagdohor, 

Mymensingh
1 1

On 26 April 2017 at around 2:00 am he was allegedly picked up by a group of plainclothes men 

from law enforcement agency from his house. While Johura Khatun, mother of the victim asked 

them about their identity they told her to go to the office of detective branch of police in the 

morning. However, they searched for him in DB office, police station and other places but did not 

find his whereabouts. On 26 April 2017 Johura Khatun filed a General Diary (GD) with Kotowali 

Model Police Station. He was surfaced alive on 16 June 2017. He said that he was handcuffed 

and blindfolded.

1

. On 26 April 2017 

Johura Khatun filed 

a General Diary 

(GD) with Kotowali 

Model Police 

Station. 

26/04/2017 16/06/2017

Manabzamin 

28/04/2017, 

Shahanaz 

Parvin, cell no: 

01963873743 

and 

Nayadiganta 

17/06/2017 

http://www.dailyn

ayadiganta.com/

detail/news/2286
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31 Aftab An accused 

Luchiya village, 

Kaliganj upazila, 

Jhenaidah

1 1

On 2 May 2017 at around 3:00 pm, a man named Aftab was allegedly disappeared after being 

picked up by men claiming to be police from Luchiya Village under Kaliganj Upazila in Jhenaidah 

District. Aftab‘s wife Rubina Khatun said that Assistant Sub-Inspector (ASI) Tariqul Islam along 

with two policemen came to their house and told them that there was a warrant against Aftab and 

he had to go with them. The police arrested her husband and took him to police station. Soon after 

that, the family members of Aftab also went to the police station and saw him in the lock-up. 

However, that night when Rubina went to the police station again to give her husband food, the 

police officers on duty informed her that they did not arrest her husband; but the Detective Branch 

(DB) of Police did. She was told to inquire at the DB office. The family went to Jhenaidah DB 

Police Office where the DB officials informed them that they had not arrested anyone named Aftab. 

Rubina said that they did not find Aftab even after searching for him in different places. There were 

three cases against her husband. He had been given bail from the High Division of the Supreme 

Court for two cases and there was a warrant against him in another. Aftab‘s nephew Shariful Islam 

said that his uncle was involved in Awami League politics. Two policemen named ASI Tariqul 

Islam and Liton had picked his uncle up; and at that time they had told the police that Aftab was on 

bail. The police had told them to go to police station with the bail document. When they went to the 

police station, they saw his uncle detained there. At the second visit, he was no longer there and 

police denied arresting him. However, on 9 May 2017 he was shown as arrested under a drug 

case with 250 pieces of Yaba tablets.

1 2/5/2017 9/5/2017

Rubina Khatun, 

wife of Aftab, 

cell number- 

01776511518

32
Md. Saidur 

Rahman Sayed 

Activist of Awami 

League
1 1 1

33 Shaon Not reported 1 1 1

Jessore 

Municipality Park 

Hira Khatun, mother of Md. Saidur Rahman Sayed told that Sayed was involved with Bangladesh 

Awami League politics. On 5 April 2017 at around 10:00 am, Sayed went to Jessore Municipality 

Park with his friend Shaon. On that day, at around 12:00pm, Hira Khatun‘s neighbour Md. Sabbir 

Hossain called her over mobile phone and told that Sayed and Shaon were being arrested by 

police. The park was nearby to her home and she rushed to the park and found HM Shahidul 

Islam, SI of Kotowali Police Station and some other policemen were taking her son Saidur and his 

friend Shaon into a police van. She asked HM Shahidul Islam, SI of Kotowali Police Station about 

the reason of her son‘s arrest and Shahidul told her to go to the police station. Hira Khatun went to 

the police station but waited until evening to get any information  about Saidur. At around 7:00pm, 

HM Shahidul Islam and Md. Amir Hossain, SI of Kotowali Police Station told her to bring two lac 

BDT to release her son. They said if she fail to bring the amount, her son will be killed and the 

body will be disappeared. Hira Khatun said she could not give them money. Police published news 

that Md. Saidur Rahman Sayed escaped from police when he was taken to recover arms at 

Mandalgati village in Jessore Upazila. Since then, her son‘s whereabouts remains unknown. 

According to goverment statement, Saidur Rahman is one among the ten, who have been found 

after went missing. An official of the Special Branch of ploce said Saidur is absconding at the 

moment. He is accused in five cases. 

5/4/2017

Field visit by 

local HRDs in 

September 

2019; and 

Prothom Alo, 30 

August 2022 ; 

Shaon's phupu 

phone 

01923072134



34 Hatem Mollah A small trader 

Agrabhulot area , 

Sharsha upazila of 

Jessore 

1 1

A small trader in Sharsha upazila of Jessore district has been missing on 10 May 2017 after 

allegedly being picked up by a group of men, who posed themselves as detectives. Family 

members of the missing person – Hatem Mollah, a small trader from Agrabhulot area – held a 

press conference at Jessore Press Club on 18 May as they had so far failed to gather any 

information about his whereabouts from the law enforcement agencies. Hatem‘s wife Nasima 

Khatoon Bulu in her written statement said one Jillur Rahman of neighbouring Goga Beelpara area 

had visited their house in the afternoon on 10 May. He later called five men to the house over 

mobile phone. The five men introduced themselves as members of the DB and picked up Hatem at 

gunpoint. The victim‘s family members went to Jessore DB Office the next day to inquire about the 

incident, but the law enforcers denied having a hand in it and suggested that they go to the local 

police. Sharsha police, however, told the family members that Hatem was in custody of the DB and 

told them to wait for some days, according to Nasima. The family members went to Sharsha police 

station again on 15 May but could not get any information about Hatem. Contacted, Jessore DB 

OC Imaul Haque said: ―We haven‘t detained anyone named Hatem Mollah. None of our teams 

even carried out a drive in Sharsha on the day of the incident.‖ Two days after the press 

conference Hatem Mollah was freed by RAB. However, family members did not want to talk 

anything about this incident anymore. They want to keep the incident confidential.

1 10.05.2017 20.05.2017

Manabzamin 

19/05/2017 and 

Dhaka Tribune 

19/05/2017 

http://www.dhak

atribune.com/ba

ngladesh/nation/

2017/05/19/trade

r-picked-men-

posing-

detectives-

jessore/

35
Mehdi Hassan 

Sabuj aged 27 

Owner of a 

computer shop 

‗Sabuj Electronics‘ 

Sabuj Electronics, 

Moheshpur, 

Jhenaidah

1 1

On 9 May 2017 at around 10:00 am, a youth named Mehdi Hassan Sabuj aged 27 of Moheshpur 

in Jhenaidah, was picked up by a group of plainclothes men from his work place ‗Sabuj 

Electronics‘ and taken to Moheshpur Police Station. His father Aminur Rahman and others were 

present when Sabuj was picked up. They were able to identify the men in plainclothes as police of 

Moheshpur Police Station. Later Mehdi Hassan Sabuj was taken towards Jhenaidah town in a 

white microbus from the police station. Since then there has been no trace of him. His family 

informed that there was no case filed against Sabuj in any police station. On the date of incident, 

when the family of the disappeared Sabuj contacted the police station, police told them that no 

information could be given. The Detective Branch (DB) of Police claimed that on 31 May 2017 at 

5:10 pm, they arrested Sabuj as JMB member from Sayedabad area of Dhaka. However, Mehdi 

Hassan Sabuj‘s maternal uncle Moshikur Rahman said that on 30 May 2017 Sabuj‘s paternal 

uncle Abdus Salam met Sabuj at Moheshpur Police Station.

1 9/5/2017 30/05/2017

Moshikur 

Rahman, 

maternal uncle 

of Sabuj, cell 

number- 

01720955428 

and Jolima 

Khatun Joli, 

mother of 

Sabuj, cell 

number- 

01927883060

36

Professor Sheikh 

Mohammad 

Mohiuddin

Senior Vice-

President of 

Chittagong South 

District BNP

Arambagh area in 

Dhaka
1 1

On 23 May 2017 at around 12:00 am, Professor Sheikh Mohammad Mohiuddin, senior Vice-

President of Chittagong South District BNP, was picked up by some men claiming to be members 

of the Detective Branch (DB) of Police, from a bus counter at Arambagh area in Dhaka. On 24 

May in the afternoon, it was learnt that he was returned to the same place. His wife Farida 

Yeasmin said that her husband went to Dhaka on 21 May to see his ill father. Sheikh Mohammad 

Mohiuddin was picked up by Members of the Detective Branch (DB) of Police from a bus terminal 

while he was returning to Chittagong in the night of 23 May. Farida was informed that by one of her 

husband‘s friend. That friend was present in the bus terminal with Mohiuddin. The Deputy 

Commissioner of the Dhaka Metropolitan DB Police (East), Khandker Nurun Nabi said that he was 

not aware about the arrest of Mohiuddin. In the meanwhile, Sheikh Mohammad Mohiuddin said 

that he was in extreme anxious and fear of disappearance while under detention. He had given up 

hope whether he would be able to return to his family and party leaders and activists. He was 

repeatedly recalling the fate of many disappeared BNP leaders, including Ilias Ali. Sheikh 

Mohammad Mohiuddin spent a whole night in DB police office without any sleep.  

1 23/05/2017 24/05/2017

The daily 

Prothom Alo, 

25/05/2017; 

www.prothom-

alo.com/banglad

esh/article/11924

86/ 

The daily 

Jugantor, 

26/05/2017; 

www.jugantor.co

m/last-

page/2017/05/26

/127471/  


37
Mehedi Hasan 

Babul

Flexi loads 

businessman

Tarakanda, 

Mymensingh
1 1

Mohammad Billal Hossain Sarkar, elder brother of disappeared Mehedi Hasan Babul alleged that 

at around 4:30 am on 3 May 2017 Mehedi Hasan Babul called him to open the door. While Billal 

opened the door he saw four plainclothes men with shotgun surrounded his brother Mehedi Hasan 

Babul. He asked those plainclothes men about their identity. They identified themselves as 

members of law enforcement agency. Those plainclothes men asked Billal‘s name and confirm the 

name of Mehedi Hasan Babul. Then they pushed Billal to the room and locked the door with a 

chain. They left the place with Mehedi Hasan Babul in a black colored vehicle. Billal called his 

younger brother to open the door. Later, they searched for Mehedi Hasan Babul in Police Station, 

Rab Office, and DB Office but could not find him. Still he is traceless. In this regard they filed a 

General Diary (GD) with Tarakanda Police Station. GD number- 105, date- 03/05/2017.The GD 

later considered as case. Case no:2, date- 11/05/2017. The case is transfered to Mymensingh DB 

Office. After 52 days family members got information that Mehedi Hasan Babul was detained in 

Keraniganj Central Jail. On 25 June 2017 a female lawyer from Dhaka Court phoned Babul's elder 

brother Billal Hossain. She informed that Babul is in the central jail now. Billal went to the jail and 

meet with his brother.

1 3/5/2017 25/06/2017

Manabzamin 

04/05/2017 and 

Billal Hossain 

Sarkar, elder 

brother of 

Mehedi Hasan 

Babul, cell 

number- 

01733161491 

and Milon 

Sarkar, younger 

brother of Billal 

Hossain Sarker, 

cell number- 

01761526096 

and 

Manabzamin 

01/07/2017 

http://www.mza

min.com/article.p

hp?mzamin=720

03&cat=3/-৫২-

নিি-পর--

োরাকান্দার-িুই--

38

Maidul Islam 

alias Rana aged 

45

Alleged member of 

Purba Banglar 

Communist Party 

(ML) Janojuddho

1 1 1

Rupdiya village, 

Jessore

On 30 May 2017 Maidul Islam alias Rana aged 45 and his cohort Alimuddin aged 55 allegedly 

killed in a gunfight with the members of RAB-6 at Kotchandpur upazila, Jhenaidah. According to 

RAB, Maidul Islam alias Rana is a local leader of Purba Banglar Communist Party (ML) 

Janojuddho and Alimuddin is his cohort. Maidul‘s brother Azizul Islam alleged that on 7 May 2017, 

Maidul and his cohort Alimuddin was picked up by the members of law enforcement agency from 

Rupdiya village, Jessore.

7/5/2017 30/05/2017
Prothom Alo 

01/06/2017

http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
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http://www.prothom-alo.com/bangladesh/article/1192486/
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Alimuddin aged 

55

Alleged member of 

Purba Banglar 

Communist Party 

(ML) Janojuddho

1 1 1

Rupdiya village, 

Jessore

On 30 May 2017 Maidul Islam alias Rana aged 45 and his cohort Alimuddin aged 55 allegedly 

killed in a gunfight with the members of RAB-6 at Kotchandpur upazila, Jhenaidah. According to 

RAB, Maidul Islam alias Rana is a local leader of Purba Banglar Communist Party (ML) 

Janojuddho and Alimuddin is his cohort. Maidul‘s brother Azizul Islam alleged that on 7 May 2017, 

Maidul and his cohort Alimuddin was picked up by the members of law enforcement agency from 

Rupdiya village, Jessore.

7/5/2017 30/05/2017
Prothom Alo 

01/06/2017



40 Habibur Rahman
union AL sports 

secretary;
1 1 1

41 Zakir Hossain, 
a ward-level AL 

president;
1 1 1

42  Azizul Islam, 

Union Jubo League 

organising 

secretary.

1 1 1

43 Roop Mia

Vice President of 

Bashkhali Union 

Awami League 

1 1 1

44
Mohammad 

Arjullah aged 35

Guard of Banijjik 

Krishi Khamar Keru 

and Cong of 

Hijolgari

Shanti Mia's shop, 

Nehalpur village, 

Begumpur union, 

Sadar upazila, 

Chuadanga

1 1

Mohammad Tuhin Hossain, brother-in- law of Arjullah alleged that on 27 May 2017 at around 10:00 

pm Arjullah was at Shanti Mia's shop. At that time, a white microbus went there and picked up him. 

Local people asked those people's identity. They identified themselves as members of law 

enforcement agency and left the place with him. On 31 May 2017 Mohammad Arjullah's dead body 

was found from the field of Ponerosuti village of Hasadoho Union, Chuadanga District.

1 27/05/2017 31/05/2017
Prothom Alo 

01/06/2017

45
 Mobarak 

Hossain aged 16

A student of class 

X of Aagran High 

School

Boraigram Upazila 

in Natore
1 1

On 30 May 2017 Mobarak Hossain (16), a student of class X of Aagran High School, was picked 

up from Boraigram Upazila in Natore by some men claiming to be members of RAB-13. Teachers 

of Aagran High School said that two men had come to the school about two months ago identifying 

them as development activists. They showed interest to provide stipend to the students of 

vocational section and selected five students, including Mobarak Hossain for that. On 30 May, they 

made a phone call and infomed that they would come to the school to give stipend money. Though 

the school was closed, the teachers including the Head Teacher were present at the school with 

those five students. At around 1:00 pm, four men arrived there in a white microbus. They identified 

them as RAB-13 members and forcefully taken Mobarak Hossain into the microbus. Head Teacher 

Abdus Sobhan said that the men gave him a cell phone number (01718779522) and told him that 

Mobarak was being taken for inquiry whether he has any extremist connection. Later he did not get 

any response by calling to that cell phone. When contacted the control room of RAB-13, one 

official in anonymity informed that no team from RAB-13 visited Natore. Meanwhile the Assistant 

Superintendent of Police of Natore RAB Camp, Anwar Hossain said that they have become 

confirmed that members of RAB-13 had taken Mobarak. On 31 May 2017 Mobarak Hossain was 

shown arrested by RAB-13 under a case of Anti Terrorism Act which was filed on 6 May 2017 with 

Rangpur Kotowali Police Station. Till afternoon Mobarak Hossain was not produced before the 

court said his lawyer Shahadat Hossain.

1 30/05/2017 31/05/2017

Prothom Alo 

31/05/2017 and  

01/06/2017

46 Abdul Latif
Nasimon (a local 

vehicle) driver 
1 1 1

On June 2, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Abdul Latif 

as neo-JMB member of Sarwar-

Tamim group from Pagla Kanai 

area, Jhenaidah. The daily 

Ittefaq, 02/06/2017, 

http://www.ittefaq.com.bd/wholeco

untry/2017/06/02/116037.html

2/6/2017

47 Titu Biswas 

a supplier of timber 

to a local fertilizer 

factory

1 1 1

He surfaced alive at home on 

August 14, 2017. Phone no. of 

Titu Biswas- 01722955941

14/08/2017

48

Mohammad 

Shahin Zaman 

aged 22

3rd year student of 

Accounting(hons) 

at KC College

1 1 1

On June 2, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Mohammad 

Shaheen Zaman as neo-JMB 

member of Sarwar-Tamim group 

from Pagla Kanai area, 

Jhenaidah. The daily Ittefaq, 

02/06/2017, 

http://www.ittefaq.com.bd/wholeco

untry/2017/06/02/116037.html

2/6/2017

49
Rana Ahmed 

aged 25

A final year student 

of the Government 

Keshab Chandra 

(KC) College 

1 1 1

On July 27, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Rana as neo-

JMB member of Sarwar-Tamim 

group from Porahati Union and 

Kotchandpur area of 

Jhenaidah.Rana's father Amirul 

islam, Phone no. 0193125233o, 

Rana's uncle Lavlu Hossain, 

Phone no. 01922681295 

risingbd.com, 27/07/2017, 

http://www.risingbd.com/banglade

sh-news/234447

27/07/2017

Jhenaidah

Nine persons of Chuadanga, Baruikhali and Podahati Villages in Jhenaidah district have allegedly 

disappeared between 4 May and 6 May 2017. Among them, on 6 May 2017, six persons were 

picked up from their houses. Police said that they might have been picked up by any ‗agency‘ due 

to their involvement in ‗extremist activities‘. On 7 May 2017 police informed that two persons 

named Abdullah and Tuhin Biswas of Chuadanga Village were killed during a police ‗operation‘ at 

Bojarpur Village under Moheshpur Upazila, 45 kilometeres away from Chuadanga Village.  The 

deceased Abdullah was a Nasimon (a local vehicle) driver and Tuhin was a supplier of timber to a 

local fertilizer factory. However, according to a police statement, they were members of ‗New 

JMB‘.  Among the nine disappeared persons, Mohammad Titu Biswas, elder brother of Tuhin 

Biswas and Abdul Latif, a rickshaw van puller and father-in-law of Abdullah, were also victims of 

disappearance. Other victims were Mohammad Shaheen Zaman (22), a third year degree student 

of Accounting at the Government Keshab Chandra (KC) College; Rana Ahmed (25), a final year 

student of the same college; Monwar Hossain (32), a bi-cycle mechanic; Limon Biswas (17), a 

grille-maker; Al-Amin (25), a transport driver;  Mohammad Saheb Ali (42), a cloth businessman; 

and Emon Hossain (17), a student of class XI in Wazir Ali School and College. Among the nine 

disappeared, the family of Titu Biswas filed a General Diary (GD) with Jhenaidah Sadar Police 

Station. Amena Khatun, mother-in-law of victim Saheb Ali said that on 6 May 2017 at around 11:30 

pm, five men came to their house in a white microbus and asked them to point out the house of 

Shaheen Zaman. The distance from Saheb Ali‘s home to Shaheen Zaman‘s home is about 40-50 

yards. Shaheen Zaman‘s father Anwar Hossain said, the men put his son in a microbus without 

giving any reason and that police did not accept their complaint when he went to police station to 

file a General Diary.    One of the locals (with the condition of staying anonymous) informed that 

after 21 days of getting abducted, Emon was produced before court with the accusation of being 

related to terrorism.

04/05/2017 

 to 

06/05/2017

The daily 

Prothom Alo, 

18/05/2017; 

www.prothom-

alo.com/banglad

esh/article/11845

06/

 A boat in Rajnagar 

area.Narsingdi

It has been almost six years since four Awami League men disappeared after police allegedly 

picked them up from a village in Raipura, Narsingdi.A team from Raipura Police Station picked 

them up around 2:30pm on May 26, 2017, and took them to Bashgari PoliceOutpost in the upazila, 

at least 13 witnesses told to the Daily Star.In the evening, two of the witnesses saw a police team, 

led by Azharul Islam Sarkar, the then officer-in-charge of Raipura Police Station, take the 

detainees to Syedabad Ferry Ghat in a police pick-up.Meanwhile, desperate family members of the 

missing men visited the police headquarters, the home ministry, and even appealed to the prime 

minister, but to no avail."I waited for my son's return for the last five years. Now I just want to know 

whether he is alive," Azizur's 80-year-old mother Nur Jahan Begum told.

26/05/2017
The Daily Star, 

04/03/2023



50
Monowar 

Hossain aged 32
A bi-cycle mechanic 1 1 1

On July 27, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Monowar 

Hossain as neo-JMB member of 

Sarwar-Tamim group from 

Porahati Union and Kotchandpur 

area of Jhenaidah. risingbd.com, 

27/07/2017, 

http://www.risingbd.com/banglade

sh-news/234447

27/07/2017

51
Limon Biswas 

aged 17
A grille-maker 1 1 1

On August 13, 2017 he was 

arrested by RAB from Porahati 

Union, Jhenaidah

13/08/2017

52 Al-Amin aged 25 A transport driver 1 1 1

On June 2, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Al-Amin as 

neo-JMB member of Sarwar-

Tamim group from Pagla Kanai 

area, Jhenaidah. The daily 

Ittefaq, 02/06/2017, 

http://www.ittefaq.com.bd/wholeco

untry/2017/06/02/116037.html

2/6/2017

53

Mohammad 

Saheb Ali aged 

42

A cloth 

businessman
1 1 1

On June 2, 2017 members of 

RAB conducted an operation 

where they arrested Mohammad 

Saheb Ali as neo-JMB member of 

Sarwar-Tamim group from Pagla 

Kanai area, Jhenaidah. The daily 

Ittefaq, 02/06/2017, 

http://www.ittefaq.com.bd/wholeco

untry/2017/06/02/116037.html

2/6/2017

54
Emon Hossain 

aged 17 

A student of class 

XI in Wazir Ali 

School and College

1 1 1

55 Liakat Ali aged 47

Joint Secretary of 

Moricha union of 

Doulatpur upazila 

unit of BNP and 

former union 

parishad member

1 1 1

56
Saiful Islam aged 

40

Son of Daud 

Pramanik
1 1 1

57 Enamul Haque Mechanic 
Diyabari area, 

Uttara, Dhaka
1 1

On June 6, 2017 at around 1:00 am he was allegedly picked up by 15-20 plainclothes men after 

identifying themselves as members of law enforcement agency from his mess at Diyabari area, 

Uttara, Dhaka. At that time his two other roommates were present there. They are- Raju Biswas 

and Shakhawat.He is still missing. A GD is filed in this regard. He is freed alive in Dhaka in 

December, 2017.

1 1/6/2017
December, 

 2017

Prothom Alo 

13/06/2017 and 

Sharmin, wife of 

Enamul, 

01774988832

58

Mohammad 

Siddiqur Rahman 

Nahid

Honors 2nd year 

student of 

Narsingdi 

Government 

College and former 

college unit 

Chhatra Dal leader 

House/Holding: 

152, Road: 

Mofazzal Road, 

Dakkhin Nagriya 

Kandi, P.O: U, M, 

C Jute Mills- 1601, 

P.S: Narsingdi 

Model Thana, 

District: Narsingdi, 

Bangladesh 

1 1

On 9 June 2017 at around 2:00 am, eight to 10 plainclothes men claiming to be members of law 

enforcement agency allegedly picked up former Assistant General Secretary of Narsingdi 

Government College unit of student wing of BNP, Mohammad Siddiqur Rahman Nahid, from his 

house at Narsingdi. The men carried arms with them. They were very rushed to pick him up and 

left the place with two black colored cars and one white colored car. Later, the family members of 

Mohammad Siddiqur Rahman Nahid searched for him everywhere but did not find him. They filed a 

General Diary (GD) on the same day. They went to RAB-11 office but members of RAB denied the 

arrest of Nahid. Finding no other way, they arranged a press conference on 11 June 2017 at 

Narsingdi Press Club. The whereabouts of Nahid still remain unknown. During a visit by HRDs, the 

family members of Mohammad Siddiqur Rahman Nahid refused to discuss any issues relating to 

Nahid's abduction or his present whereabouts. However, one of BNP‘s Central leader Ms. Shireen 

Sultana, when contacted she informed that abducted former Assistant General Secretary of 

Narsingdi Government College unit of student wing of BNP, Mohammad Siddiqur Rahman Nahid 

returned after nine months of his abduction. According to Jugantor published on 15 February 2022 

he was disappeared for 251 days. Nahid said that he was blindfolded for 251 days. During only for 

taking foods or using toilets his blind fold used to removed. The law enforcement agency 

recovered some arms and stated that those belongs to him but he stated that didn't know anything 

about the arms. He was severely tortured first 10 days after being picked up. 24 hours he was with 

handcuff so that he could not sleep or move. He was handed over to RAB on 14 February 2018. 

1 9/6/2017 15.02.2018

Opu Gaffar, 

paternal cousin 

of Nahid, cell no- 

 01711038203, 

Sajeda Begum, 

mother of 

Nahid, cell no- 

01712675841; 

Jugantor 15 

February 2022, 

https://www.juga

ntor.com/todays-

paper/first-

page/520273  

Prothom Alo, 30 
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Abdul Mannan 

aged 36
1 1 1

Furniture 

businessman
Bhuiyapur, Tangail

On 12 June 2017 they were picked up by a group of plainclothes men who identified themselves 

as members of law enforcement agencies from Bhuiyapur, Tangail. After 45 days, Johurul's wife 

Rosy informed that three of them were returned home.

12/6/2017 27/07/2017

Prothom Alo 

20/06/2017 and 

Rosy, wife of 

Johurul, cell no: 

01850589623

Jhenaidah

Nine persons of Chuadanga, Baruikhali and Podahati Villages in Jhenaidah district have allegedly 

disappeared between 4 May and 6 May 2017. Among them, on 6 May 2017, six persons were 

picked up from their houses. Police said that they might have been picked up by any ‗agency‘ due 

to their involvement in ‗extremist activities‘. On 7 May 2017 police informed that two persons 

named Abdullah and Tuhin Biswas of Chuadanga Village were killed during a police ‗operation‘ at 

Bojarpur Village under Moheshpur Upazila, 45 kilometeres away from Chuadanga Village.  The 

deceased Abdullah was a Nasimon (a local vehicle) driver and Tuhin was a supplier of timber to a 

local fertilizer factory. However, according to a police statement, they were members of ‗New 

JMB‘.  Among the nine disappeared persons, Mohammad Titu Biswas, elder brother of Tuhin 

Biswas and Abdul Latif, a rickshaw van puller and father-in-law of Abdullah, were also victims of 

disappearance. Other victims were Mohammad Shaheen Zaman (22), a third year degree student 

of Accounting at the Government Keshab Chandra (KC) College; Rana Ahmed (25), a final year 

student of the same college; Monwar Hossain (32), a bi-cycle mechanic; Limon Biswas (17), a 

grille-maker; Al-Amin (25), a transport driver;  Mohammad Saheb Ali (42), a cloth businessman; 

and Emon Hossain (17), a student of class XI in Wazir Ali School and College. Among the nine 

disappeared, the family of Titu Biswas filed a General Diary (GD) with Jhenaidah Sadar Police 

Station. Amena Khatun, mother-in-law of victim Saheb Ali said that on 6 May 2017 at around 11:30 

pm, five men came to their house in a white microbus and asked them to point out the house of 

Shaheen Zaman. The distance from Saheb Ali‘s home to Shaheen Zaman‘s home is about 40-50 

yards. Shaheen Zaman‘s father Anwar Hossain said, the men put his son in a microbus without 

giving any reason and that police did not accept their complaint when he went to police station to 

file a General Diary.    One of the locals (with the condition of staying anonymous) informed that 

after 21 days of getting abducted, Emon was produced before court with the accusation of being 

related to terrorism.

04/05/2017 

 to 

06/05/2017

The daily 

Prothom Alo, 

18/05/2017; 

www.prothom-

alo.com/banglad

esh/article/11845

06/

Lalon Shah 

Bridge, 

Bheramara, 

Kushtia

Both of them were allegedly picked up from a bus of Fatema enterprise heading towards Kushtia 

near at Lalon Shah Bridge, Bheramara, Kushtia on 19 May 2017. Later on 28 May they were 

shown as arrested with 10 bottles of phensidyle by DB police.

19/05/2017 28/05/2017

Prothom Alo, 

01/06/2017,http:/

/www.prothomal

o.com/banglade

sh/article/12009
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60
Shomsher Fakir 

aged 37
1 1 1

61
Johurul Islam 

aged 35
1 1 1

62
Azizul Haque 

Daud aged 30

Activist of youth 

wing of BNP
1 1 1

63
Omor Faruk 

Mohon aged 35

Activist of youth 

wing of BNP
1 1 1

64 Farhad Mozhar
litterateur and 

columnist 
Shyamoli, Dhaka 1 1

Farhad had worked the whole night before he went missing in the morning. He went out to buy 

some medicines. When he reached the middle of Shyamoli and Adabar, some men picked him in a 

microbus and blindfolded him. According to the case statement, Farhad phoned his wife Farida on 

3 July  at 5:30am and said in fear that some people were taking him away to kill. He then 

disconnected the call. ―I could not understand whoever kidnapped him. Policemen started an 

investigation right after I had made a call to Adabar police,‖ said Farida. He made four phone calls 

to Farida after his abduction, informing her that the kidnappers demanded Tk 35 lakh as ransom 

for his release, Farida mentioned in the case statement. A police source said: ―Kidnappers took 

Farhad to Khulna via Gabtoli, Manikganj, Doulatdia Ghat, Faridpur, and Jessore. They kept him 

blindfolded during the whole journey from Dhaka to Khulna. ―The kidnappers set him free between 

7:00 pm and 7:30 pm on 3 July in Khulna and gave him a ticket to go back to Dhaka.‖ A team of 

Rapid Action Battalion rescued Farhad Mazhar from a Dhaka-bound bus of Hanif Paribahan in 

Nawapara area of Jessore when he was coming back to Dhaka, the source added.

1 3/7/2017 3/7/2017

Dhaka Tribune 

05/07/2017 

http://www.dhak

atribune.com/ba

ngladesh/crime/2

017/07/05/farhad

-mazhars-

kidnapping-

wrapped-

mystery/

65
Abdullah Al 

Faruq Rahid
An H.S.C examinee

Horipur, 

Bhatapara, Poba 

upazila, Rajshahi

1 1

Abdullah Al Faruq, an H.S.C examinee is a son of retired police constable and freedom fighter 

Mohammad Jahir Uddin from Poba upazila, Rajshahi. Abdullah Al Faruq is also an activist of 

student wing of Awami League of Horipur Union unit. Rahid‘s father alleged in a press conference 

that on July 18 at around 7:00 pm one Torikul Islam called Rahid over phone to repair the electric 

connection of his house. Rahid went to Torikul‘s house. From there, six-seven men allegedly 

picked up him in a white microbus after identifying themselves as members of RAB. After the 

incident, family members searched for him everywhere but did not find any trace. They 

communicated with Poba Police Station and RAB office but they also said that they did not arrest 

him. Rahid‘s father informed that Torikul Islam is a source of RAB and RAB picked up Rahid from 

Torikul‘s house. Rahid‘s father also said that RAB filed a case of vandalism against Rahid and 

others in 2013 with Poba Police Station. Rahid‘s father said that police did not file case against 

Torikul while they went to file a case against Torikul. However, a general diary (GD) is recorded in 

this regard.   As per the newspaper Jugantor published on 15 February 2022, Rahid stated that on 

20 February 2018 after seven months of enforced disappearance the agency let him to return back 

his home.

1 18/07/2017 20.02.2018

Bangladesh 

Protidin 

23/07/2017 
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66
Mohammad 

Sohel Khan 

General Secretary 

of youth wing of 

Awami League of 6 

no.Chingrakhali 

union of Morolganj 

upazila

Bagerhat Court 

Ground
1 1

In a press conference at Bagerhat Press Club Munni Begum, wife of disappeared Mohammad 

Sohel Khan alleged that on 17 July 2017 in the morning Mohammad Sohel Khan went to Bagerhat 

Court for giving attendance in a case. At around 10:45 am Sohel Khan was beat up by a group of 

people identifying themselves as members of RAB and DB in front of the lawyer‘s BAR in the court 

yard.  At that time, Sohel‘s friends tried to save him but those men opened blank fire and dragged 

Sohel towards VIP road area. They picked up him in a microbus with black colored window glass. 

After the incident, family members communicated with RAB-06, Bagerhat Sadar Police Station, DB 

office, Morolganj Police Station and Mongla Police Station however they did not find him. Every 

law enforcement agency denied the arrest of Sohel. However, He surfaced alive at around 10:30 

pm on 22 January 2018. He came to his house alone and very afraid to say about anything about 

his return.

1 17/07/2017 22/01/2018

Munni, wife of 

Sohel, cell- 

01710587429, 

Manabzamin 

20/07/2017, 

www.mzamin.co

m/article.php?mz
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যুব঱ীে

67
Anwar Sadat 

Tutul

Senior Assistant 

Secretary, AB Party

Ambagan, 

Moghbazar home
1 1

He was picked up from Moghbazar home on 10 August 2017  and taken to Detective Branch of 

police  office at Mintoo Road where he kept for 8 days and first three days he was tortured brutally.  

 The DB office denied that he was under their custody.A false case was filed against him about  

CNG driver burning case and   he was produced before the court after 10 days of his  picking 

up.He was in a jail for one month and then was released.

1 10/8/2017 19/8/17

His own 

statement on 12 

September 

2023 , Cell:  

01710991645; 

01963649709

Motaleb member's 

house Kamlabari, 

Ramchandrapur 

village, Motiganj 

union, Sonagazi 

upazila, Feni

On 17 June 2017 at around 10:30 am a group of police led by Sub-Inspector Jahangir Alam and 

Sub-Inspector Mohammad Shahajahan of Sonagazi Model Police Station detained Azizul Haque 

Daud and Omor Faruk Mohon from Motaleb member's house Kamlabari, Ramchandrapur village, 

Motiganj union, Sonagazi upazila, Feni. After the incident, while family members went to the police 

station, the members of police denied the arrest of them. Six days later, on 22 June 2017 they 

were produced before the Senior Assistant Judicial Court of Feni. The court sent them to Feni 

Disitrict Jail.

17/06/2017 22/06/2017

Manabzamin 

23/06/2017    

http://www.mza

min.com/article.p
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Furniture 

businessman
Bhuiyapur, Tangail

On 12 June 2017 they were picked up by a group of plainclothes men who identified themselves 

as members of law enforcement agencies from Bhuiyapur, Tangail. After 45 days, Johurul's wife 

Rosy informed that three of them were returned home.

12/6/2017 27/07/2017

Prothom Alo 

20/06/2017 and 

Rosy, wife of 

Johurul, cell no: 

01850589623



68

Mohammad 

Shofikul Islam 

alias Shofik aged 

37

A rickshawpuller

Islampur Bazaar, 

Ishoreganj, 

Mymensingh

1 1

Mohammad Shofikul Islam is a rickshaw puller and he works at Brahmanbariya. On 12 August 

2017 he came to visit his home at Monohorpur village, Sohagi Union, Ishoreganj upazila, 

Mymensingh. He was allegedly picked up by the members of RAB-14 on 14 August 2017. In this 

incident Shofikul‘s father Abdul Wahed filed a general diary (GD) with Ishoreganj Police Station on 

15 August 2017. In the GD it is stated that on 14 August 2017 at around 8:30 pm five to six men 

picked up Mohammad Shofikul Islam in a microbus from a shop of Monir Bhuiya situated at 

Islampur Madrassa Bazar, Ishoreganj, Mymensingh. Local people informed the family that in the 

microbus ‗RAB-14‘ is written. Therefore, family members communicated with RAB, Police and DB 

Police of Mymensingh. However, all the law enforcement agencies denied the arrest of 

Mohammad Shofikul Islam. Later, on 17 August 2017 he was shown as arrested by the 

Mymensingh Police Bureau of Investigation (PBI) under a murder case. 

1 14/08/2017 17/08/2017

Jugantor, 
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Nayadiganta, 
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69 Mohammad Alam

Joint Convener of 

Amanullahpur 

Union unit Jubo Dal

From his own 

house Begumganj 

under Noakhali 

District.

1 1

On 22 August 2017 Mohammad Alam, Joint Convener of Amanullahpur Union unit Jubo Dal, was 

picked up by a group of plainclothes men from his own house Begumganj under Noakhali District. 

His family informed that members of law enforcement agencies denied the arrest of Mohammad 

Alam. Later police claimed that Mohammad Alam was shot dead in a ‗gunfight‘ with police at 

around 2:00 am on 23 August in Dasherpole area of Amanullahpur. Mohammad Alam‘s father Abul 

Kashem said that at around 6:30 am on 22 August, a microbus stopped on the road beside their 

house. Seven men in plainclothes got down from the microbus. Among them, three men entered 

their house and tied his son Alam. After that the men started beating Alam and put him in the 

microbus and left. The men who arrived on microbus identified them as members of the Detective 

Branch of Police. After the incident at around 10:00 am, Abul Kashem along with his daughter-in-

law went to Begumganj Police Station. But the police of Begumganj Police Station denied the 

arrest of Alam and told them to come at the police station later to file a General Diary (GD). In the 

afternoon, the family organized a press conference at Begumganj and sought interference from the 

administration to find his son. Regrettably, he came to know that in the morning of 23 August that 

police killed his son.

1 22/08/2017 23/08/2017

Prothom Alo, 

25/08/2017  / 
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70
Syed Sadat 

Ahmed

Vice President of 

Chittagong South 

unit of BNP and 

ABN Group 

managing director

Banani flyover on 

the airport road, 

Dhaka

1 1

On 22 August, a number of plainclothesmen halted a private car under Banani flyover on the 

airport road. They forced the car‘s passenger BNP leader and also ABN Group managing director 

Syed Sadat Ahmed to get into a microbus. Sadat Ahmed, son of former army officer, is a member 

of executive committee of Bangladesh Nationalist Party (BNP) and also vice president of 

Chittagong South. According to the family members, he was preparing to contest the national 

election from Raozan in Chittagong. His wife filed a case with Cantonment police station in 

connection with the incident. Deputy Commissioner of Gulshan zone police Moshtak Ahmed said, 

―The investigation is going on. The Detective Branch is also working.‖ However, he was shown 

arrested on 30 December 2017. A team of DB police "arrested him at Rampura Bridge around 

10:00 pm" and showed him arrested in a case filed in 2015 with Ramna Police Station in 

connection with carrying out subversive activities, Deputy Commissioner of DB (South) Md 

Shahidullah said.

1 22/08/2017 30/12/2017

Prothom Alo 

29/08/2017 
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-
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71 Aniruddha Roy Businessman Mar 1 1

Businessman Aniruddha Roy was picked up on 27 August from 72 Gulshan Avenue‘s Union Bank 

office. Security guard Fakrul of the Bank said that he did not see but heard that a gentleman was 

picked up on a microbus. A family member of Aniruddha said that they think he might have been 

abducted following a feud over business. Aniruddha had a partnership business with a ruling party 

Member of Parliament. Recently, the partnership broke up. This incident has video footage, as 

well. According to the investigating officials, Aniruddha was not abducted by any professional 

criminal groups. Analysing the footages, they said the abduction was conducted by trained people 

and those who were carrying out the abduction were introducing themselves as members of a 

special force. Gulshan police station Officer-in-Charge Abu Bakar Siddique said that they found a 

hint of business related conflict. A video footage taken by the Union Bank‘s CCTV camera shows 

three persons are picking up a man on a silver coloured microbus at 4:19pm in front of the Bank. 

Aniruddha‘s car driver Shah Alam, and others are also there in the footage. Shashwati Roy, wife of 

Aniruddha, said that her husband went to the Bank for a loan. When asked if she has any 

suspects, Shashwati said, ―I don‘t want to say anything. Cannot say through what we are passing 

our days. Please, do something for the sake of our son,‖ she said. Contacted, Dhaka Metropolitan 

Police (DMP) commissioner Asaduzzaman declined to comment on this issue. After 81 days of 

disappearance, Aniruddha Roy returned his home suddenly. He did not told anything about his 

disappearance. Just said they were very professional. According to report publoished in Netra 

News, he was detained in a secret detention centre run by the DGFI.

1

After 81 days of disappearance, 

Aniruddha Roy returned his home 

suddenly. He did not told anything 

about his disappearance. Just 

said they were very professional. 
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72 Shamim Ahmed Official of IFIC Bank 

Khana Basmati 

Restaurant at 

Paltan, Dhaka

1 1

On 23 August, nine people identifying themselves as members of law enforcement agencies 

forced Shamim Ahmed, official of IFIC Bank to get into a white microbus in front of Khana Basmati 

Restaurant at Paltan. It is recorded and found from CCTV footage of the restaurant situated to the 

opposite side of Baitul Mukarram National Mosque. Shamim‘s wife Shilpi Ahmed filed a general 

diary (GD) in this regard with Paltan police station. However, he was returned on 29 August 2017. 

He was blindfolded and left near the Motijheel area of Dhaka.

1

Shamim‘s wife 

Shilpi Ahmed filed a 

general diary (GD) 

in this regard with 

Paltan police station. 

23/08/2017 29/08/2017
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73 Aminur Rahman 

Secretary General 

of Bangladesh 

Kalyan Party (BKP) 

Unknown 1 1

The BNP-led 20-party opposition alliance partner Bangladesh Kalyan Party (BKP) has alleged that 

its Secretary General Aminur Rahman has remained missing for three days. Khaleda Zia, 

chairperson of BNP alleged that State forces picked up him. Golam Mostofa Bhuiyan, Secretary 

General of Bangladesh NAP party said that the office of BKP and Nap is situated in the same 

building. On 27 August 2017 at around 8:30 pm to 8:45 pm after finishing office both of them went 

downstairs and had tea. Then Aminur started to go his home at Aminbazaar. After that, he was 

traceless. However, at around 11:40 pm on 22 December 2017, a team of Detective Branch of 

police of Dhaka Metropolitan Police (DMP) arrested Aminur from Gulshan‘s Shahjadpur area. After 

that investigation officer produced him before Dhaka Metropolitan Magistrate Court on 23 

December 2017, the court placed him on a four-day remand in a case filed against him in 

connection with a bomb attack in Dhaka‘s Gulshan area in 2015. He was shown arrested in the 

case filed with Gulshan Police Station on 16 February 2015 in connection with a bomb attack on a 

procession.

1 27/08/2017 22/12/2017
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74 Anwar Hossain

Alleged member of 

Neo JMB and a 

motor garage 

owner in 

Hemayetpur of 

Dhaka‘s Savar

Savar, Dhaka 1 1

Counter Terrorism and Transnational Crime (CTTC) of Police arrested two members of alleged 

Nobbo JMB  from Nikunja area of Khilkhet under Dhaka district. The arrested are Anwar Hossain 

and Nayeem Ahmed aka Anas. A total of 30 detonators and some books inspiring extremism were 

seized from them at the time of their arrest, said Monirul Islam, chief of CTTC. Anwar's family 

alleged that Anwar was detained by DB Police from Savar, Dhaka one month and eleven days 

before. They had been filed a general diary to Savar Model Police Station at time of his 

disappearance.

1

They had been filed 

a general diary to 

Savar Model Police 

Station.
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75 Abdul Jabbar

A Hons. student of 

the department of 

Political Science of 

Satkhira 

Government 

College

Jabbar's house, 

Tala, Satkhira
1 1

In a press conference at Satkhira Press Club Mohammad Sazzad Hossain, father of disappeared 

Abdul Jabbar alleged that on 4 September 2017 at around 10:00 am in the morning some 

plainclothes men identified themselves as police and picked up him from his house by wearing 

handcuff. As they want to know the reason, they told ―there are allegations‖. Then they went to 

Tala Police Station but they refused his son's arrest. Jabbar's father identified the police officer 

who arrested his son. Jabbar also found that police officer‘s used motorcycle in the Tala Police 

Station ground. Later Jabbar came to know the name of that Police Officer is Mohammad Masud 

Hasan, Inspector (Investigation). Masud Hasan also denied Sazzad's allegation. They want to file 

GD but police refused to file GD. OC of Tala Police Station said Masud Hasan transferred from 

this police station. On 12 October 2017 Jabbar was shown arrested by the members of the 

Dumuria Police Station. Later, he was handed over to Tala Police Station. A case was filed against 

him under section 15 (3) (gha) of Special Power's Act, 1974.

1 4/9/2017 12/10/2017
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76
Abdus Salam 

Tarafder
Alleged criminal 1 1 1 12/11/2017

77 Hafizur Not reported 1 1 1 26/09/2017

78
Minhaj Yeamin 

Jibran
Dentist

Decent Dental 

Care Hospital, 

Salimullah Road, 

Mohammadpur, 

Dhaka

1 1

Minhaj's wife alleged that two plainclothes men introduced themselves as members of the 

Mohammadpur Police Station and picked Minhaj up from his own chamber of Decent Dental Care 

Hospital, Mohammadpur at around 8:00 pm on 1 October 2017. After that, his cell phone was 

switched off. Jamal Uddin Mir, Office-in-Charge (OC) of Mohammadpur Police Station told a 

national daily named Jugantor that Minhaj was an alleged member of Hizb-ut-Tahrir. There are 

cases against him in the police station. He might have arrested by other law enforcement agency. 

After that, he was shown arrested by RAB on 3 October 2017.

1 1/10/2017 3/10/2017

4.10.17 

Jugantor; 

http://epaper.pro

thom-

alo.com/view/dh

aka/2017-10-
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Khulna

In a press conference at Press Club Lipi Khatun, wife of Abdus Salam Tarafder alleged that on 16 

September 2017 eight to 10 men including two women identified themselves as RAB members 

picked Abdus Salam and Hafizur Rahman from Abdus Salam's house. They beat them and took 

them to a microbus. After this incident, Abdus Salam's father Golam Tarafder searched at RAB-6 

office, district DB Police office, Police Stations but they could not find them. After 10 days of 

detention, Hafizur returned home. Abdus Salam‘s family filed a general diary (GD) in the Phultola 

Police Station. Officer-in-Charge of Phultola Police Station, Abdus Salam was a listed criminal. At 

least 12 cases filed against him including murder, arms, extortion etc. RAB officials said they also 

searching Abdus Salam. After one month and 26 days, on 12 November 2017 he was shown 

arrested by RAB with a pipe gun and few rounds of bullets. Members of RAB handed him to the 

KMP Aronghata Police Station. Lipi Khatun, wife of Abdus Salam informed that her husband was 

tortured and detained in a dark room. Abdus Salam is now at Khulna District Jail.

16/09/2017

10/10/2017 

Jugantor, 

https://www.juga

ntor.com/news/2

017/10/10/16225
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79 Faisal Not reported
Deovog, 

Narayanganj
1 1

On 2 October 2017 a group of men identified themselves as members of law enforcement agency 

and picked up Faisal from his rented house at Deovog, Narayanganj. After the incident, he was 

traceless. On 4 October 2017 Faisal‘s father Akhtaruzzaman, retired bank official filed a general 

diary (GD) with Fatullah Police Station. After filing the GD, Akhtaruzzaman also informed that Sub-

Inspector (SI) Fazlul Haque of Fatullah Police Station repeatedly demanded for money but the SI 

did not take any steps to find out his son Faisal. After two months and 18 days, on 20 December 

2017 Faisal was found in the Keraniganj Jail.
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80
Jiadul Islam 

aged 45

Alleged member of 

neo-JMB
Comilla 1 1

Jiadul's wife Mosammat Babiara alleged that her husband was picked up by plainclothes 

policemen from Comilla in October. Later, on 13 December 2017 he was shown arrested as an 

alleged member of neo-JMB by the Counter Terrorism and Transnational Crime (CTTC) unit from 

Mohakhali, Dhaka. Jiadul Islam is a resident of Koilardiyar village, Shyampur union, Shibganj 

upazila, Chapainawabganj district.

1 October 13/12/2017

Bangladesh 

Protidin,16/12/20

17, 

http://www.bd-

pratidin.com/last-

page/2017/12/16

/289256

81
Riasat Elahi 

Chowdhury (28)

Distributor of a 

Technology 

Institution

Old Airport Road 

of Tejgaon, Dhaka
1 1

Family members of Riasat alleged that some five to six persons picked up Riasat by a microbus 

from Old Airport Road, Tejgaon. In this connection, Sayeda Hosne Jahan, mother of the Riasat 

filed a GD with the Tejgaon Police Station. GD No. 36. Hosne Jahan told that on 15 October 2017 

early in the morning Riasat went out of the house to go to the office. Few minutes later, former 

tenant of their house informed that four to five persons picked up Riasat in a microbus. Two 

motorcycles also there behind the microbus. On 16 October 2017 RAB told in their press briefing 

that RAB-3 was arrested Riasat and he was an alleged member of JMB (Sarowar-Tamim group).

1 15/10/2017 16/10/2017

16/10/2017 

Jugantor, 

Prothom Alo 

and 17/10/2017 

Prothom Alo

82
Mithun 

Chowdhury

President of 

Bangladesh Janata 

Party (BJP)

1 1 1

83 Ashique Ghosh
President of Youth 

Organisation of BJP
1 1 1

84
Robiul Islam 

Robi (40)

Chairman "Robir 

Alo" named a local 

NGO

Jhenaidah 1 1

In a press conference, Kokila Akhter Ranu, wife of Robiul Islam, alleged that on October 25, at 

around 5:00pm two persons with plainclothes came to their house and identified themselves as 

members of Rab and picked up her husband Robiul Islam. She said, once upon a time, her 

husband was a drug peddler. Now he left that business and conducting a NGO named "Robir Alo". 

The Rab wanted him as their source but Robiul refused it. Rab-6 denied this allegation. Later, 

Kokila filed a general diary with the Jhenaidah Sadar Police Station. GD No. 1383, dated: October 

29, 2017. Rabiul Islam and his family members could not be reached as they left the area. 

However, locals said on condition of anonymity that Jhenaidah RAB had showed Rabiul as 

arrested in a drug and explosives case two weeks after he was picked up.

1

Kokila Akhter Ranu, 

wife of Robiul Islam 

Robi filed a general 

diary with the 

Jhenaidah Sadar 

Police Station. GD 

No. 1383, dated:  

29/10/ 2017.

25.10.17

10.11.17 

Jugantor 

https://www.juga

ntor.com/city/201

7/11/10/170545

85
Mubashar Hasan 

Caesar

Assistant professor 

of political science 

at North South 

University

IDB Bhaban, 

Agargaon, Dhaka
1 1

Mubashar Hasan Caesar, an anti-extremism analyst and a North South University Assistant 

Professor of political science, allegedly picked up by the members of law enforcing agency, after 

emerging from a meeting at the UNDP country office in Dhaka‘s Agargaon on 7 November 2017. 

Motaher Hossain, father of Mubashar, filed a general diary with the Khilgaon Police Station. 

Moshiur Rahman, Officer-in-Charge of the Khilgaon Police Station said, they along with DB Police 

investigating the incident but they did not get any information yet. Nearest persons of Mubashar 

suspected that law enforcement agency might picked up him. He returned his South Banasree 

home in Dhaka on 22 December 2017. He was detained in a secret detention centre named 

"Aynaghor" run by DGFI.

1 7.11.17 22.12.17

10.11.17 

Prothom Alo 

and Prothom 

Alo, 22/12/2017, 

http://en.prothom

-

alo.com/banglad

esh/news/16833

3/Missing-NSU-

teacher-

Mubashar-

Farashganj, Dhaka

In a press conference at Sylhet Press Club Sumona Chowdhury, wife of Mithun Chowdhury 

alleged that on 27 October 2017 at around 12:10 am in front of Priyo Bollob Jeu Mondir under 

Sutrapur Police Station of Dhaka Metropolitan City, Mithun and Ashique Ghosh were picked up in 

a black car. Witnesses said that they identified themselves as members of law enforcement 

agency and detained them. The family members of Mithun and Ashique searched them in different 

Detective Offices but nobody give them about their information. Sumona told that she later went to 

Sutrapur Police Station to file a General Diary (GD), but the on duty police officer denied to file a 

GD. DB assistant commissioner Fazlur Rahman on 15 November 2017 at night said Mithun and 

Ashique were arrested under section 54 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, on charges of 

conspiring ―to topple the present government‖ and ―to bring BNP to the state powers through illegal 

means‖. Ref: Daily Star 16 November, 2017

27.10.17 15.11.17

1.11.17 

Prothom Alo 

and 16.11.17 

The Daily Star, 

http://www.theda

ilystar.net/frontp
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return-or-cops-

will-find-them-

1491814



86
Tanvir Yasin 

Karim

Owner of Karim 

International and 

Darus Salam 

Publications

Road# 51, 

Gulshan-2, Dhaka
1 1

In 8 November 2017 Tanvir Yasin Karim, owner of Karim International and Darus Salam 

Publications, was taken away by a group of 30-35 plainclothes and uniformed men from his house 

in Gulshan at around 6:00 am said one of the security guard of that house. (Prothom Alo) 

Seeking anonymity, a few other staffs said that a group of 20 men went to the bookstore owned by 

Tanvir in the city's Manipuripara early on 8 November 2017, and picked up two security guards 

from there. Taking the guards with them, they then went to Tanvir's flat around 5:00am. As they 

knocked on the door, Tanvir's mother opened it and asked about their identity. But without 

identifying themselves, they entered the flat and started searching it, added the staffers quoting his 

mother. Later they took away Tanvir and the two guards with them. The guards were released later 

in the city's Farmgate area. But there was no trace of Tanvir as of last night, said the staffs. (Daily 

Star) A general diary was filed with the Gulshan Police Station by one of Tanvir's cousins, said the 

victim's family sources. Contacted, Abu Bakar Siddique, officer-in-charge of the police station, 

declined to make any comment without going through the GD. Tanvir's family members went to the 

offices of the Detective Branch of police and RAB, but couldn't get any information about him, said 

the sources. (Daily Star) Dhaka Metropolitan Police said that he was arrested about 9:30pm on 19 

November 2017, in a joint operation by its Counter Terrorism and Transnational Crime unit, police 

headquarters, Special Branch and Bogra police in connection with the 15 August blast in Hotel 

Olio International in the capital‘s Panthapath. Metropolitan Magistrate Nurunnahar Yasmin 

remanded him for five days in police custody. Ref: Newage 21.11.17

1 8.11.17 19.11.17

10.11.17 

Prothom Alo & 

Daily Star 

http://www.theda

ilystar.net/frontp

age/rab-picks-

bir-protik-

habibul-1489066

12:00 and 
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http://www.newa

gebd.net/article/
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importer-tanvir-

karim-arrested

87 Jahangir Hossain

A member of 

Dynna Union 

Parishad in Sadar 

upazila, Tangail 

and general 

secretary of Dynna 

union unit of Jubo 

League (Youth 

wing of AL)

The court 

premises, Tangail
1 1

Reshma Begum, wife of Jahangir Hossain, alleged that around 11:30am, on 5 November 2017 

while getting out of the courtroom, some plainclothes men, introducing them as DB police, picked 

him up in a CNG-run three-wheeler. On that day, Jahangir Hossain, a member of Dynna Union 

Parishad in Sadar upazila, had to appear before the Second Additional District and Sessions 

Judge's Court. Reshma was speaking at a press conference at Tangail Press Club on 10 

November 2017. She claimed that she heard about her husband's abduction from the driver. The 

family members went to the Tangail DB office, Tangail Model Police Station, and local offices of 

the Rapid Action Battalion and Police Bureau of Investigation but all of them denied detaining him. 

On 7 November 2017 the family members lodged a general diary with Tangail Model Police 

Station. Contacted, Ashok Kumar Sinha, officer-in-charge of Tangail DB police, said they did not 

pick up Jahangir. He is an accused in a dozen of cases, including murder. He has many rivals and 

used to remain in hiding most of the time. Anything could happen to him. Reshma said her 

husband is an accused in five cases. He is now on bail in all of them. However, on 21 December 

2017 he visited his house and met with her mother. The family members now do not want to talk 

more about this incident.

1
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Tangail Model 
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88

Hasanuzzaman 

alias Boro Hasan 

(32)

Raipur Union 

Parishad member 

and Youth wing of 

AL leader

Chandpur village, 

Raipur union, 

Gangni, Meherpur

1 1

Raipur UP chairman Golam Saklain Sepu told that, a group of seven to eight plainclothes men who 

identified themselves as members of the administration picked up Hasan in the microbus when he 

had tea at a tea stall on 11 November 2017. Family members of Hasan along with Golam Saklain 

Sepu, UP Chairman of Raipur Union, had been searched Gangni police station, Meherpur DB 

office and others places but they did not find out Hasan. On 14 November 2017, Jibonnagar police 

shown him arrested with arms and send him to the Chuadanga Court.

1 11.11.17 14.11.17

Golam Saklain 
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89

Masum Billah, a 

madrassa 

student

First year student 

of Alim Course of 

Harindia Alim 

Madrassa

Harindia 

Berepukur House, 

Kotchandpur, 

Jhenaidah

1 1

On 15 November 2017, a group of 10-12 plainclothesmen identified themselves as members of 

police, picked up Masum from Harindia Berepukur, Kotchandpur, Jhenaidah at around 11:30pm. 

Then they tied Masum's eyes and get in a microbus and left the area. Abul Kalam, Masum's uncle, 

told that Masum did not support or involve with any political party. On 5 December 2017 members 

of RAB-6 arrested Masum Billah from Poet Golam Mostafa Road as JMB member. He was 

arrested under a case under section 9 (2)/12 of Anti Terrorism Act, 2009. On 6 December 2017 he 

was produced before the Chuadanga Court.

1 15.11.17 05.12.2017
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রর-ন্ি



90 Saddam (25) Comilla 26.11.17

91 Al Amin (34)  Tongi 2.12.17

92 M. Maroof Zaman

Former 

Ambassador and 

retired army officer

Hazrat Shahjalal 

International 

Airport Road, 

Dhaka

1 1

M. Maroof Zaman, a former Ambassador and retired army officer, sent a text message to her elder 

daughter Shabnam Zaman, who is studying in Brussels of Belgium, that he would drive his own 

car (Registration Number: Dhaka Metro-Ga-21-1399) to the Shahjalal International Airport of 

Dhaka to receive his younger daughter Samiha Zaman, who was scheduled to return to Dhaka 

from Brussels after visiting her elder sister. The flight was scheduled to arrive in Dhaka at 8:00 pm 

on 4 December 2017. At 6:00 PM on 4 December, Mr. Zaman sent text message to his daughter 

Shabnam informed him that she would send an SMS message to her father‘s cell phone for getting 

update about the landing of her younger sister‘s flight in Dhaka. At 6:16 PM, Mr. Zaman suggested 

Shabnam in another text message that she should communicate with him via his cell number: 

+880 1789 435588. At 6:29 PM, Shabnam replied to her father‘s text message vis Facebook 

Messenger, which was found not delivered to Mr. Zaman. It indicates that between 6:16 PM and 

6:29 PM Mr. Zaman left his home and went out of internet connection. At 7:42 PM: The house 

help of Mr. Zaman‘s flat had received a call on the landline at home but it got disconnected before 

anyone could speak. The number was displayed as ―P‖ (private). At 7:45 PM: A second call was 

received on the landline, this time with Mr. Zaman telling the maid in a subdued voice that ―people 

will come, give them the laptop and computer‖. He also said that the house help would not be able 

to find the other thing they needed, because the helpers do not know what is inside his drawers. 

The line then hung up. The caller‘s phone number was displayed on the flat‘s landphone as 

―000123456‖ (which is a strange phone number in Bangladesh‘s context). At 8:05 PM: Soon after 

the second phone call, three well-dressed men in plain cloth came to Mr. Zaman‘s flat. They also 

systematically opened and searched all of the drawers in Mr. Zaman‘s room. The house help had 

called Mr. Zaman‘s cell phone but found the switched off. One of the men had said, ―Sir is in the 

airport, that‘s why his phone is off.‖ CCTV footage later showed these men to be dress in black 

and in jeans, wearing caps and with their faces obscured. Meanwhile, at 8:01 PM: Mr. Zaman‘s 

younger daughter Samiha Zaman‘s flight landed at the Dhaka airport. She called her father but his 

phone was found switched off. From then onward both sisters- from and Brussels tried to contact 

their father repeatedly but to no avail. After a few hours at the airport Samiha called her paternal 

uncle Mr. Reffat Zaman to pick her up. The relatives were unable to communicate with Mr. Maroof 

Zaman. At 1:01 PM on 05 December: Shabnam Zaman logged into some of her father‘s online 
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Ibrahim Khalil 

(26)

An Imam of 

Shahibag Mosque 
Savar, Dhaka 1 1

Ibrahim Khalil was son of Delowar Hossain. He was permanent resident of Trishal under 

Mymensingh district. Khalil‘s family members filed a general diary in this connection with the Savar 

Model Police Station. Israhil, younger brother of Ibrahim told, Ibrahim working at Shahibag Mosque 

as Imam for last two years. He went missing on 15 December 2017 when he was going to his 

neighbour's house from the mosque. In 20 December 2017, RAB-11 arrested Ibrahim Khalil from 

Jatrabari, Dhaka. RAB also arrested Mizanur Rahman, who was with Ibrahim. They rescued 

militant books and leaflets. RAB told that Ibrahim joined JMB in 2011 and he was active member of 

Sarowar-Tamim group. Alep Uddin, Assistant Police Superintendent of RAB-11 told that a case 

was filed under the Anti-Terrorism Act accusing them with Bandar police station under 

Narayanganj district in August.
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Suspects in the 

murder of Banani 

manpower 

businessman

2 2

Two people, identified by police as suspects in the murder of Banani manpower businessman, 

were killed in a ―shootout‖ between detectives and their cohorts in the capital's Badda. However, 

families of the deceased alleged that they were picked by some people, who claimed themselves 

to be detectives, several days ago. Shaikh Nazmul Alam, deputy commissioner of the Detective 

Branch (north) of Dhaka Metropolitan Police, said the "gunfight" took place around 4:00am when a 

team of detectives went to Aftabnagar to arrest suspected killers of the businessman. As soon as 

the DB men reached there, the criminals opened fire. The law enforcers fired retaliatory shots, 

triggering the "gunfight". Two of the criminals were hit by bullets. Doctors declared them dead after 

they were taken to Dhaka Medical College Hospital, he said. The police official claimed that Al 

Amin and Saddam were involved in the killing of Siddik Hossen Munshi in his Banani office on 14 

November. Family of Saddam alleged that some people, identifying themselves as detectives, 

picked up Saddam, a resident of city's Rampura, from his father-in-law's house in Comilla on 26 

November. Al Amin's family alleged that law enforcers picked him up from Tongi on 2  December. 

Both the families claimed that the two were innocent. According to the families, Al Amin used to 

sell toys, while Saddam used to sell mosquito coils and candles. Al Amin's wife Khadiza Begum 

told The Daily Star that his husband used to stay in the capital's Abdullahpur.

2



94

Mohammad 

Murshidul Islam 

(39)

Farmer and a 

supporter of the 

Bangladesh 

Nationalist Party 

(BNP)

Taherpur Taltoli, 

Baghmara, 

Rajshahi

1 1

Murshidul Islam's wife Selina informed that her husband was disappeared on 19 April 2017 by men 

claiming to be from the Administration. Murshidul was a farmer and was a supporter of the BNP. 

He was accused in politically motivated cases and arrested in 2007. He was detained in jail for 22 

months till his acquittal. Selina said that her son was studying in Kamruzzaman College in Rajshahi 

town. When her son fell ill, Murshidul went to Rajshahi town to see him. While returning from 

Rajshahi town, Murshidul was stopped by four plain clothed men at a place called Taherpur. They 

were on two motorbikes. They blindfolded Murshidul and took him away. Murshidul‘s nephew 

Jamal was with him when he was taken. When Jamal asked about the identity of the men, they 

claimed that they were from the ‗Administration‘. They threatened Jamal into keeping quiet. The 

men told Jamal to leave without looking back otherwise they would shoot him. Soon after 

Murshidul was picked up Jamal informed the locals and his aunt Selina about the incident. Selina 

went to the police station and filed a General Diary (GD numbered 786) on 20 April 2017. After five 

days, she met the current member of parliament of Baghmara constituency (Enamul Huq) and he 

told her that her husband had been picked up by RAB 5 members. He suggested that she to go to 

the RAB camp. In August 2017, Selina went to the RAB-5 office and SI Jewel Rana wrote down 

her complaint. Then every month she went to the RAB office and met Commanding Officer 

Mahbub Alam of RAB 5 and Company Commander Major Ashraf, but they kept denying the arrest 

of Murshidul Islam. It has been three years and seven months since Murshidul was picked up and 

disappeared.

1 19.04.2017

Information 

gathered by 

local HRDs

95

Mohammad 

Abdul Kuddus 

(28)

Cattle Trader and a 

supporter of the 

Bangladesh 

Nationalist Party 

(BNP)

Ibrahim Nagar, 

Baghmara, 

Rajshahi

1 1

Mohammad Abdul Kuddus (28), son of Mohammad Abdus Samad and a resident of Baghmara in 

Rajshahi, was disappeared on 06 April 2017 by plainclothes men claiming to members of 

‗Administration‘. Kuddus was a cattle trader and a supporter of the Bangladesh Nationalist Party 

(BNP). Parvin Nesa, sister of Mohammad Abdul Kuddus, informed that on 06 April 2017 at around 

8:30 am, her brother was going to Ahsanganj Bazar in Attarai under Naogaon District with two 

hundred thousand taka to buy cattle. Kuddus was in an auto rickshaw with some neighbours; and 

when he reached Ibrahim Nagar, a border area under Baghmara Upazila, two plain clothed men on 

a motorbike stopped his auto rickshaw. When the neighbours who were with him asked the men 

who they were and why Kuddus was being picked up, the men claimed that they were from ‗the 

Administration‘. They had guns and handcuffs. They handcuffed Mohammad Abdul Kuddus, put a 

helmet on him and hoisted him onto a motorcycle. At around 9:00 am, Parvin Nesa‘s cousin called 

her cell phone and informed her that Kuddus had been taken away. Parvin Nesa contacted her 

father and her uncle (Yunus Ali) who is a retired RAB official. The men contacted different police 

stations and RAB camps to search for Kuddus but the latter all denied arresting Kuddus. On the 

same date, Kuddus‘ father and uncle went to Baghmara Police Station and lodged a General Diary 

(GD). GD numbered 224, dated 06/04/2017. After three months of Kuddus‘ disappearance, the 

family came to know from a man named Sairul, who was disappeared and detained with Kuddus, 

that Kuddus was detained in RAB-5 office. 

1 06.04.2017

Information 
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